
General Assembly
THIRD COMMITTEE

19th meeting
held on

FOK'I‘1'-SISI‘H SESSlO\ Tuesday, 22 October 1991
at 3 P.m.

OSficial  Rmx-ds
-

New York

Chairman:

later:

later:

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 19th MEETING

Mt. AL-SHAALI

Mr. ALFARO-PINEDA
(Vice-Chairman)

(United Arab Emirates)

(El Salvador)

Mr. AL-SHAALI
(Chairman)

(United Arab Emirates)

CONTENTS

AGENDA ITEM 95: ADVANCEMENT OF WOMEN (continued)



A/C.3/46/SR.19
English
Page 2

AGENDA ITEM 95: ADVANCEMENT OF WOMEN (mw) (A/46/3 (chap, VI, sect. D),
38, 17, 325 , 344 , 377 , 439, 462, 491, 5011Rev.l)

i, M.rr-,T#‘Q&PS.QN  (Jamaica) said that endorsement of the Nairobi
Forward-looking Strategies for the Advancement of Women to the Year 2000 by
the General Assembly in 1985 had shown the willingness to change many
inequalities existing between men and women. By adopting resolution 451129,
the General Assembly had again reaffirmed its determination to encourage the
fl113  participation of women in society. The report of the Secretary-General
(A/46/439) on the first review and appraisal of implementation of the
Strategies had concluded that considerable progress hat? been made in
eradicating legal. discrimination against women1  however, discrimination still
ex isted  in  pract ice  in  a l l  countr ies  regardless  o f  the ir  leve l  of
development. Therefore, Governments must enforce and monitor women’s
ieqislation  in order to redress de facto discrimination. Public declaration
of commitment to an equal opportunity policy and its consistent execution
would also have an  impact on g0vernrnental  progranunes to promote
equality ,

2. Jamaica was a party to the Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of
Discrimination against Women, and its Constitution guaranteed fundamental
rights and freedoms for all citizens. It had also adopted a national policy
statement reaffirming its commitment to women’s development and directing all
government departments to implement that policy. Its goals included ensuring
that economic, trade and employment policies protected and increased women’s
access  to employment and income; identification and upgrading of women’s
skil ls , improved access to credit, markets and support services, improvement
in women’s pay and conditions of work, diversification of women’s employment,
and appropriate child-care measures. The Bureau of Women’s Affairs also
helped women to realize their potential while creating avenues for their full
integration into national development.

3 . Jamaica was pleased that a special analysis would be made of the
contribution of ageing women to development, and that the Commission on the
Status of Women would be provided witi a comprehensive picture of the issue of
ageing women as a potentially vulnerable group.

4 . Jn  order to be active participants in development, women must bs  active
in politics and decision-making. In Jamaica, women held high positions in the
political arena and the public sector. Furthermore, a non-governmental
organization offered a training programme geared towards preparing women for
p o l i t i c a l  l i f e . His delegation appreciated the Secretary-General’s efforts to
increase the recruitment of women in the United Nations Secretariat, though
continuing and forceful efforts would be necessary in order to reach and
possibly surpass the set goals. The  United Nations Development Fund for Women
(UNIFEM) should be congratulated on its programmes, which had enabled many
women in developing countries to seize control of their own lives and
well -being.



A/C.3/46/SR.19
English
Page 3

5. KL~L,J~~.IL_TI.  (Observer  for Palest ine)  s a i d  that ,  whi le  her  delegat.ion
appreciated the Sec.retary-General’s  report on the situation of Palestinian
women (E/CN.6/1991/9), that  report  d id  not  rck’lect the  harsh  rea l i ty  o f  the ir
conditions. Moreover, although her delegation highly appreciated the work of
UNRWA, its report was not related to Economic and Social Council resolution
1990/11,  which requested a raport.  on the situation of Palestinian women. Her
delegation had hoped that the report. would have responded to that resolution
a n d  to  the  recommendation  of  the report  o f  the  miss ion o f  experts
(E/CN.6/1990/10).

6. The condition of Palestinian women and children in the occupied
Palestinian territory continued to deteriorate at an alarming rate, as a
result of Israeli occupation axld  oppression. Those women were suffering
physically,  s o c i a l l y , economically and emotionally. Curfews, confiscation  o f
land, military terrorism, destruction of the educational and cultural
structure of Palestinian society, and separation of families through
deportation of husbands, brothers and fathers were inflicting great harm on
Palestinian women and their families. Meanwhile, medical services had
d e t e r i o r a t e d  drast i ca l ly .

7” In response to the worsening conditions for Palestinian women prisoners
held  in  Israe l i  ja i l s , the United Council of Palestinian Women had appealed to
the international comnlunity  to intervene on their behalf. The Council had
demanded improvement in medical treatment, nutrition and sanitation,
educational materials, family visitation rights, and an end to collective
punishment,

8, Living *under  occupation, the Palestinian woman faced the danger of losing
her identity and being deprived of her basic human rights. She also faced
discrimination, unemployment, violence and persecution. She and her family
suffered from poverty, hunger and thirst, along with deteriorating health
facilities and interrupted education. But those experiences had failed to
crush the determination of Palestinian women. They would continue to fiqht
against Israeli oppression until the international community took the
necessary action to protect them. The advancement of Palestinian women and
their full equality and self-reliance could only be achi.eved  by an end to the
Israeli occupation and the attainment of their right co self-determination and
establishment of an independent state in accordance with United Nations
resolutions and the Charter.

9, M__r..A,&~IKOV  (Union of Soviet Socialist. Republics) said that his
delegation welcomed the increased number of States parties to the Convention
on the Elimination of All Forms of Discrimination against Women and at the
same time shared the concern that most States which had not acceded to the
Ccnventlon  were situated in regions where the status of women left much to be
desired. The States participating in the recent Conference on Security and
Cooperation in Europe held in Moscow had agreed  to urge the States which had
not yet done so to ratify or accede to the Convention and the States parties
which had expressed reservations to consider withdrawing them.



A/C.3/46/SR.19
English
Page 4

(Mr.Parshi_kov,-USSR)

10. The States participating in the Conference had reaffirmed that their
objective was to achieve both &I iura  and de facto equality of opportunity for
men and women and had undertaken to carry out the necessary measures to
implement the Nairobi Forward-looking Strategies, s t r e n g t h e n  e x i s t i n g  n a t i o n a l
machinery for the advancement of woman  and take stepa to halt all forms of
violence against and exploitation of women.

11. In accordance with the final document of the Moscow Conference, the
participants would encourage efforts to provide all possible economic
opportunities for women. Particular importance had been attached to the need
to ensure that no structural reform policies or programmes discriminated
against women.

12. The participants bad also undertaken to encourage the broadest
p a r t i c i p a t i o n  b y  w o m e n  i n  a l l  a spec t s  o f  p o l i t i c a l  a n d  s o c i a l  l i f e ,
decision-making, training and employment and to collect information in order
to evaluate the status of women in society and improve it.

13. Ensuring the rights of women was a major  aspect of the overall question
of human rights. That view should be taken into account in the preparations
for the 1993 World Conference on Human Rights because it would be impossible
to build a civilixcd  and democratic world community without eliminating
discrimination against women. But such discrimination still existed, and
women were very rarely in a position to participate in national and
internatiolral  policy-making.

14. Nevertheless, there were grounds for optimism. S i n c e  i t s  i n c e p t i o n ,  t h e
Organization had made significant efforts to achieve equality of men and
women. The relevant United Nations  bodies were making an important
contribution in that regard. P o s i t i v e  r e s u l t s  w e r e  a l s o  b e i n g  a c h i e v e d  a t  t h e
r e g i o n a l  l e v e l . Non-governmental organizations ware playing a more active
role in protecting the interests of women and many countries were carrying out
as a matter of priority national programmes for the advancement of women.
Although his country had proclaimed equality of men and women and ensured
equal rights  for women under tha law, millions of Soviet women lacked medical
care, services and household appliances, and were employed in arduous and
low-paying jobs. His Government considered the advancement of Soviet women a
top priority and he hoped to be able to report on progress at the next session
of the General Assembiy.

15. Mag,GOLAN  ( I s rae l )  s a id  tha t  she  was  p l ea sed  to  r epor t  t ha t  I s rae l  had
recently ratified the Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of
Discriminatiofi  against Women, together with the two Human Rights Covenants.
After thorough examination, her Government had been able to ratify those
instruments without the need to adopt or amend any legislation.

16. In surveying the status of women in Israel and the problems still to be
faced, she  sa id  tha t  I s rae l  was  a  h e t e r o g e n e o u s ,  p l u r a l i s t  s o c i e t y  i n  w h i c h
p e o p l e  o f  d i f f e r e n t  r e l i g i o n s , c u l t u r e s  a n d  s o c i a l  t r a d i t i o n s  l i v e d  s i d e  b y



A/C 3/46/SR. 19
Engl i ah
Page 5

side. Women’s legal and social status reflected the interaction of
t r a d i t i o n a l  l i f e  p a t t e r n 8  w i t h  a modern we s te rn  l i f e s t y l e . Full and equal
rights for men and women were embodied !n Israel’s Declaration of
Independence, and those principles had been strengthened subsequently by laws
defining the rights of women. The right of different religious communities to
j u r i s d i c t i o n  o v e r  m a t t e r 8  o f  p e r s o n a l  s t a t u s ,  s u c h  a s  m a r r i a g e ,  d i v o r c e ,
maintenance and guardianship, had been inhetrited  from the Ottoman and British
legal systems in force before independence. S i n c e  ths  e s t a b l i s h m e n t  o f  t he
S t a t e  o f  I s r a e l , a d d i t i o n a l  l a w s  mere !n conformity with modern concepts  had
beeu enacted, She provided an overview of the wide range of legislation
enacted to ensure women’s equality in the workplace.

17. Although Israel’s democratic system allowed for equal participation of
a l l  citiaens  i n  i t s  m u l t i - p a r t y  p o l i t i c a l  a r e n a ,  w o m e n  w e r e  s t i l l
underrepresented on both national and local levels. Many wera  reluctant to
enter public life because its demands might curtail the time they could devote
to  t h e i r  f a m i l y . At the same time, many women active in public life found
themselves at a disadvantage due to the existing nomination process for
candidates. Women were becom’ag  increasingly conscious of the  need to be more
p o l i t i c a l l y  a s s e r t i v e  a n d  i n  r e c e n t  y e a r s , women’s organiaationu  had been
encouraging women to meet the challenges of political life more effectively.

18. Arab  a n d  Druae womeu  h a d  e x e r c i s e d  t h e i r  r i g h t  t o  v o t e  s i n c e  the  e a r l i e s t
e l e c t i o n s  b u t  h a d  n o t  y e t  f u l l y  p a r t i c i p a t e d  i n  p o l i t i c a l  l i f e . They had
attained independent legal status and equality  of educakional opportunity,
which had brought about far-reaching change8 in their perception of their role
within the family and the community. Many worked outside the horns and
contributed to tho family income, t h e r e b y  s t r e n g t h e n i n g  t h e i r  p o s i t i o n  w i t h i n
the family. Increasing numbers had acquired post-secondary and university
education, opening more opportunities for professional employment. Some
resulting shifts in attitudes towards women had begun to occur, but
deeply-rooted tradition8 still hampered Arrib  and Druze vomon  in fully
benefiting from their rights and privileges under law.

1s l About 7 per cent of Israeli women lived in cooperative rural communities,
such as the kibbuts  and the moshav, Women were equal members of the kibbuta
in all respects and were socially and economically independent. Released from
domestic duties, they were equal participants in the kibbutz labour  force.
Jobs in all branches of the kibbutz economy were open to them. Membership in
the moshav was by family, although both husband and wife were considered
members in their own right. Agriculture was the main source of employment in
the moshav. With the introduction ol agricultural mechanization and
labour-saving devices in the home, moshav women were increasingly able to seek
employment outside the home and farm.

/ . . .



A/C.3/46/SR.19
English
Page 6

20. Government badies  and volulAtary  organizations shared in the co.mmitment  to
advance the status of women by including components specifically intended to
promote women’s interests. She listed the government and public bodies
specifically concerned with the status of women which had been established
following the 1975 International Year for Women.

21. Women in Israel had qreatly  narrowed the gap between their equality by
law and soc’stal  constraints on its full expression. The growing awareness
among women of their potential as equal partners had generated pressure for
more representation on national and local levels and more influence in
decision-making in all spheres of life,

22. Mr.  )FUSSAIJ  (Pakistan) said that the Nairobi Forward-looking Strategies
had created an awareness that women could no longer be marginalized  in the
national development and political process. Women dominated a large segment
of the non-cash economy, especially subsistence agriculture and domestic
labour, and must be viewed as vital participants in development.

23. Progress in the implementation of the Nairobi Strategies could be
achieved only under favourable socio-economic conditions. Underdevelopment,
hunger, disease and population growth adversely affected the advancement of
women in developing countries. A major change in attitudes about development
was required on the part of not only developing countries but also financial
institutions and donor countries. The negative impact of
structural-adjustment measures was greatest on vulnerable groups, particularly
poor women. The advancement of women must be part of an overall development
strategy based on a concerted international effort.

24. Although investing in the advancement of women would not solve all
development problems, it would contribute to efforts to deal with those
problems and promote better else of resources and opportunities in the future.

25. The World Conference on Womer  to be held in 1995 would enable States to
renew their political commitment to the full implementation of the Strategies
by the end of the century. A limited number of goals should be identified for
a  programme of action to be adopted at the Conference and realistic targets
should be set with concrete quidelines  for achieving them.

26. The Constitution of Pskistan guaranteed equality of opportunity for all
cit izens, i rrespective of  sex. His Government was fully commit..ted  to
integrating women into the mainstream of nakional development. A Ministry of
Women’s Development had been established to promote the advancement of women
through development programTes  targeting srlch  areas as education, health,
vocational  training anti sociCll  welfare. The Pakistan Commission on the Status
of Women, established in 1984, had the task oE making recommendations to the
Government to safeguard women’s riqhts.

/ . l .



AIC.3I46ISR.19
English
Page 7

27, The Government had set up a bank staffed and run exclusively by women in
order to integrate women into the national business community. His country
had set a 5-per-cent quota for women’s employment in the public-service sector
and equal employment opportunities were available through oper  competition.
Non-governmental otgarizations involved in the social and economic advancement
of women received corsiderable  financial support from the Government. Women
could participate in decision-making at the highest level by standing as
candidates in open elections for national and provincial assemblies,

28. Pakistan continued to provide shelter to the largest single concentration
of refugees in the world. Despite  l imited resources ,  i t  was  doing  i ts  best to
assist the over 3 million Afghan refugees in Pakistan, tnree  quarters of them
women and children. The international community must take steps without delay
to facilitate their voluntary return to trzir country of origin i? safety and
honour.

29. The International Research and Training Institute for the Advancement of
Women (INSTRAW) haJ  made a valuable contribution to the implementation of the
Nairobi  Strategies. His country continued to support the efforts to increase
the percentage of womon  in the Secretariat, particularly at senior
policy-level and decision-making posts, Emphasis should be placed on
increasing the r8pr8SentatiOn  of women from developing countries to rectify
the existing imbalance.

30, &JJJJM&&BHJ_c;RPL’  (Thailand) said that- the Nairobi Strategies  were D
milestone in United  Nations e&forts to promote the advancement of women. The
constructive recommendations adopted in 1990 at the first review and appraisal
meeting should be fully implemented. The success of the Strategies  required
concerted efforts at every level by all par,ties  concerned. Thailand  supported
the United Nations system-wide medium-term plan for women and development.
The 1995 World Conference on Women would give new impetus to the
implementation Of the Strategies. She  haped that  the  preparato1.y  act iv i t ies
would prOdUC8  additional recommendations.

31. At the nat ional  l eve l , Governments must establish their focal points
without delay. Rational machinery was essential to ensure that the women’s
agenda became an integral part of national development plans, The
Organization sh,uld therefore use all possible means to support the work of
the national machinery.

32. In Thailand, the National Commission on Women’s Affairs spearheaded
efforts to improve the status of Thai women and had played a crucial role in
revising the country's long--term  women’s deve1Dpment  plan and formulating
policy on women’s development in the current five-year national development
plan. The Commission planned to convene a national assembly on women’s
development in the near future to ensure  that the agencies concerned
understood the objectives set and how to achieve t.hem. The plans emphasized

/ . . .



A/C.3/46/SR.l9
English
Page 8

(Ms. S-t, Thailand)

education, the participation of woman in decision-making, legal measures to
improve the promotion of women's rights and law enforcement to deal with
crhles  committed against women.

33. Thailand was determined to improve its educational and training systems
on the basis of the principle of non-discrimination so that women would have
greater opportunities and access to more services. Some of Thailand's
reservations to the Convention on the Elimination of All Forms vf Racial
Discrimination against Women had been withdrawn in 1990 and the few remaining
reservations were currently under review. Her delegation supported the call
for broader accession to and ratification of the Convention. Lastly,  Sh8
commended the work of the United Nations Fund for Women (UNIFEM)  for its
remarkable world-wide programmea.

34. Mrs.OJWAN&  (Botswana) said that ths 1995 World Conference on Women
would provide a good opportunity to review and appraise th8 progress made in
implementing the Nairobi Strategies. States should demonstrate the political
will to bring about social and economic changes in Order  to eliminate the
structural imbalances that perpetuated tht disadvsntaqed position of women in
SOC i8  ty . It was disturbing to note that women still played a
disproportionately small part in political life and decision-making in most
countries. States should eradicate legal discrimination against women and
eliminate cultural and tradition-related factors which were discriminatory
against women.

35. In developing countries, particularly in Africa, attention should focus
on both the needs of families headed by single females and the plight of
married women. In some cultures in Africa, married women were viewed as
minors and, for exanple, were unable to obtain a loan without the consent of
their husbands. States should take into account all categories of women,
including the disabled, refug8es, the elderly and the illiterate.

36. The Botswana Women’s D8V8lOpment  Planning and Advisory Committee, mad8 up
of representatives from various ministries, consulted with and advised various
government departments and non-governmental organizations on women's issues.
Under the Government's dec8ntralization policies, local authorities managed
health and primary-education services, permitting greater participation by
women in development planning and implementation. The contribution of
Botswana women in the non-formal sector could not be overestimated. Over
90 per cent of day-care centre3 in the country were run by women's
organizations.

37. The Botswana Women's Affairs Unit conducted workshops and seminars for
women from all walks of life in order to identify their needs and problems and
formulate strategies to addross  them. On the basis of the Unit's
recommendations, the Government had granted women full zay for maternity
leave. With regard to employment, the highest proportion of working women was
in the Government and, on the whole, the proportion of women employed in the



A1C.31461SR.19
English
Page,  9

formal sector had increased to nearly one third. Men and women received equal

pay for equal work. However, much still remained to be done. In conclusion,
she commended United Nations bodies such as UNIFEM for their wonderful work in
promoting the advancement of women throughout the world.

38. Ha.  m (Sierra Leone) said that her Government attached great

importance to United Nations activities aimed at improving the status of
women, and  tha t  i t  was  e s sen t i a l  f o r  t h e  m a c h i n e r y  desJgned  f o r  t h a t  purpose

t o  f u n c t i o n  efriciently,

39. In Sierra Leone, many women suffered under the triple burden of domestic
r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s , agricultural production and, most importantly, the
i n c r e a s i n g  n e e d  t o  e n s u r e  t h e  f a m i l y ’ s  s u r v i v a l  b y  p a r t i c i p a t i n g  i n  t h e  farmal
or informal economic sector. After e n d l e s s  h o u r s  s p e n t  i n  agricuJLtira1  labour
and household chores, women had little time and energy for taking rart in
p u b l i c  l i f e ,  a n d  t h  it, i n  t u r n ,  l i m i t e d  t h e i r  a c c e s s  t o  p o s i t i o n s  o f  p o w e r .
Moreover, it was not e%sy  for them to avail themselves of education and
training opportunities in order to obtain better employment.

40. Sierra I,eone’s  policy for the advancement of women focused on income

generation and employment, legal protection, education, training and health
care, with special  enrphasis  on women heads of households and on adolescent and
pregnant women.

41. S i e r r a  Laone h a d  p a r t i c i p a t e d  i n  v a r i o u s  i n t e r n a t i o n a l  m e e t i n g s  o n
women’s issues and had acceded to the Convention in 1989. Her Government
called for a comprehensive approach towards eradicating discrimination against
women.

42. &rs.  ROU  (Togo) said that her country had become a party to the
Convention in 1983 as a mean8  of joining in international action for the
i m p l e m e n t a t i o n  o f  a l l  i t s  p r o v i s i o n s , t a k i n g  a c c o u n t  o f  t h e  c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s  o f
each society. She therefore welcomed the general recommendations of the
Committee on the Elimination of Discrimination against Women (CEDAW) in
document A/46/38 on unpaid women workers in family enterprises, measuremont
and quantification of unremunerated domestic activities and disabled women.
Her delegation welcomed the lateat  report of the Commission on the Status of
Women, particularly its concentration on vulnerable groups of women. Togo
believed that national action on the advancement of women needed
strengthening] it shared the view that development required the full
participation of women and that without institutions to deal with women’s
i s s u e s , their contribution wouid continue to be ignored.

43. She noted from the Secretary-General’s report on the implementation of
the  Forward- look ing  S t ra teg i e s  (A /46 /439)  tha t  the  t a rge t s  had  s t i l l  not been
achieved. The lack of integration of women in political and administrative
decision-making only strengthened her delegation’s conviction that political

s t ab i l i t y , rocial harmony and the cessation of armed conflicts could never be

/ . _ .



A/C.3/46/SR.19
English
Page 10

achieved until the objectives  of the Strategies had been realized. In that
respect, she supported the preparatory work for the 1995 World Conference on
Women if carriea  out in implementation of the Nairobi Strategies. The
Conference offered an opportunity to demonstrate political will to make the
social and economic changes needed to eliminate the cultural imbalance
suffered by women, particularly in the developing countries.

44. She commended UNIFEM on its activities in highlighting the role  of women
and promoting action at all levels. She also commended INSTRAW  on its
activities and supported its new programmes  concerning the environment,
communications, work in the informal sector, and AIDS, particularly in the
developing countries.

45. Togo recognized the importi*nce  of women’s role and women were already
beiny  appointed to top political and  administrative posts. Women were also
active in the private sector. In general, action for the advancement of women
was still fortused on the rural sector.

46, Ms. AL-KHALID (Kuwait) said that Kuwaiti  women had proved their courage
duri,lg  Iraq’s occupation of Kuwait; those in Kuwait at the time  had played
thr:ir  part alongside the men and suifered  the same ordeals, including
martyrdom, whilst those abroad had represented their country, organizing
demonstrations and s~pp?~C.  systems. Today, they  were  e f fect ive ly  channelling
their  ski l ls  into  the  ,econstruction  of  Kuwajt on  an equal  bas is  with  their
male  compatriots. Her delegation attached great importance to the advancement
of women, g iven  the i r  ro le  in  a l l  walks  o f  l i fe  and their  e f fect ive
contribution to development.

47. Men and woman had equal rights and duties under the Constitution, which
also protected family welfare. Moreover, leqiulat.!.on  had been enacted to
protect women at work and provide for equal pay, equal promotion, equal
holidays and maternity leave. Women in Kuwait now held senior positions in
both pi.rlic  and private sectors as a resul:. o f  the  at tent ion  g iven  to  rais ing
their educational level. Hav.:‘lg  ratified the conventions of the United
Nations intended to eliminate discrimination against women and improve their
status both socially and in the workplace, Kuwait was attempting to achieve
the aims of the United Nations Decade for Women. She urged the Committee to
step up its efforts concerning the advancement of women, adding that moves to
assist women in exercising their rights and freedoms should no less be
forgotten.

48 . MS,  &,JHIPALA  (Namibia) said that the Convention on the Elimination of All
Forms of Discrimination against Women, which her country was in the process of
ratifying, had been adopted at a time when Namibian women had no voice in
their own country. With independence, however, women were encouraged and
enabled to play a full, equal and effective role in the reconstruction of
their nation. The Constitution outlawed sex dis--’LL  rmination  aTid  protected
women’s rights as individuals and within the family, thus opening doors to
women which had been barred. The Department of Women’s Affairs, established



A/C.3/46/SR.19
Enyl iah
Page 11

(Mix,.-BahiPala,.  .Nmhbi~)

in 1990, had been examining how It could reJ.ate  to other government
i n s t i t u t i o n s  i n  o r d e r  t o  f u r t h e r  t h e  c o n s t i t u t i o n a l  p r o v i s i o n s  o n  t h e
advancement of women. It was also organizing workshops, in cooperation with
non-governmental organizations, to ensure that women at all levels understood
those provisions.

49. The long existence of traditional and discriminatory apnrtheid  laws had
disadvantaged women in many ways, p a r t i c u l a r l y  i n  r e s p e c t  o f  p r o p e r t y  r i g h t s .
Following rupeal  of those laws, the Cabinet in September 1990 had instru:tad
the Department to identify discriminatory legislation and the Ministry of
J u s t i c e  hac!l  i n v i t e d  o t h e :  m i n i s t r i e s  a n d  g o v e r n m e n t  o f f i c e , :  t o  a s s i s t  i n
setting up a Law Reform Commission to review discriminatory laws and recommend
ampndmenta. The Department was now lobbying for the appointmont of a woman in
the Office of the Ombudsman and for a Cabinet decision that all dtaft
legislation should be submitted to the Depsrtment for comment, Sh expressed
her delegation's appreciation to UNIFEM for its assistance to the Department,.
Her delegation welcomed the IL0 decision  to assist  in a symposium on
development of atrategiea  and policies for the promotfon  of equal opportunity
and treatment for men and women.

50. The migrant-labour byatem  had left women on their own to contribute to
agriculture and livestock production, which were strenuous and
labour-intensive. The en.!ironmental  degradation caused by the destruction of
foresta  wan increasing rapidly, but worned  were dependent on natural reaourcea
for c¶omeatic and production purposes, a n d  f o u n d  i t  d i f f i c u l t  t o  b a l a n c e  t h e
requirement-a of conservation with the need to fend and provide for their
f ami  1 ies. Namibia therefore attached great importance to the 1992 Unitod
Nations Conference on Environment and Development. I t  was esasntial  f o r  wompn
all over the world to participate in the Conference since they bore the brulb
of environmental degradation, which was linked to rural poverty.

51. Since access to arable and grazing land for rural dwellors  WAS  not based
on ownership rights, women’8  access to land was channelled through their
relationship with men and was therefore insecure, That  p r a c t i c e  must e n d .  I n
t h e  s o u t h e r n  r e g i o n ,  f o r  oxample, poverty was compounded by isolation from the
major centres  of production; women were employed as seasonal or temporary
workers anti ~3~11s  locked in a vicious cycle of insecurity and family
retrogression. In the northern region the after-effects of the war continued
dven  t o d a y . Y&Jung  women accounted for an increasing proportion of landless
and morginalized  squatters  seeking  to earn income from informal-sector
a c t i v i t i e s  s u c h  a s  t h e  s a l e  o f  a l c o h o l . In that connection she referred to
the Land Conference held in Windhoek earlier in the year. Its
recommondatiofls, Jn  which women had been consulted on the land issue for the
f  irat  t ime , i r r e s p e c t i v e  o f  m a r i t a l  s t a t u s  a n d  i n  t h e i r  o w n  r i g h t ,  w e r e  t o  b e
p r e s e n t e d  t o  t h e  Gov(:fnment f o r  t h e  f o r m u l a t i o n  o f  i t s  l a n d - r e d i s t r i b u t i o n
policy.

52. Following  t h e  a d o p t i o n  o f  t h e  W o r l d  D e c l a r a t i o n  o n  thn  S u r v i v a l ,



A/C.3/46/SR.19
English
Page 12

Protection and Development of Children, Namibia had committed itself to a
national plan of action, whose goals for the period up to the year 2000
concerned women's fundamental needs, particularly in relation to health and
education. Namibia appreciated the support  it wau receiving from the (;nited
Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF).

53. Her delegation welcomed the 1995 World Confsrance on Women, which would
provide a further opportunity to review the Nairobi Strltegiea,  and urged  that
any new strateqiea should take account of the differing rrituation of women
from region to region. Her delegation also welcomed the forthcoming First
Ladies' Summit on Rural Women to be held in Bruaaeln.

54. UAOELINA  (Madagascar) add that Madagascar had a young population
with a high fertility rote. Some 80 per cent of the women lived in the rural
areas. Women represented a valuable  and growing human potential, since over
half of them were of working age.

55. Although Malagasy society today was patriarchal, there  were traces of the
former matriarchal civiliaation in that women were regarded au the link
between the past and the future because of their procreative faculty. That
would largely explain their privileged status as the source of life. Malagasy
women had always played an active role in promoting the family and the
community.

56. In Madagascar, private law on women, which wad partly customary, under
the influence of French private law, reflected the efforta  of the legislature
to promote the status of women. Madagascar had ratified or acceded to CI
number of international conventions concerning women, and the Administrative
Chamber and the Constitutional High Court were responsible for monitoring
equality between men and women. In 1976 a Ministry for Population and Social
Advancement had been established, with a department on the status of women and
children to monitor the atatus of women, implement government policy on women
and coordinate the activities of women’s organizations.

57. Women's emancipation depended on economic and social conditions.
Governments muat  define the role of women in n3tional  development, but the
international community must ensure favourable conditions for the realization
of the objectives of development. Her delegation regretted the slow progress
in implementing the Nairobi Strategies. The obstacles in the tiMveloping
countries, particularly in Africa, included extreme poverty, diEBaler  hunger,
axld the chronic external debt.

56. Her delegation supported the proposal of the Group of 77 calling upon the
Commission on the Status of Women to pay special attention to women in tho
developing countries, particularly in Africa and in the least developed
countries, who suffered disproportionately from the world economic crisiu,  the
burden of debt and structural adjustment. The 1995 World Conference on Women
must define meas11;es  to eliminate those obstacles.



A1C.31461SR.19
English
P&g8  13

60. ~z~~l (Oman) said that women were entirely capable of rharing
the reaponaibility for social and economic development with men. In Oman,
women were rightly deemed to be a major factor in the succoaa  of any racial
institution, whether within the family or in society at large, and improving
their educational, health, social and economic levels wuuld benefit social
progress. Omani  women had made an effective contribution to development,
having bcsu well-prepared to assume their reaponaibilities in that respect.
In recoynikion  of their rolo, a comprehensive system of support services for
women wa8  in place, with positive rerulta. A women's association was active
throughout the country, and a national development plan encompassed progranunes
to raise the overall educational level of women in th3 rural areas. Oman had
always endeavoured to make an effective contribution to enterprises concerning
the advancement of women, whether regionally or internationally.

61. In Oman, unlike some countries, there was no discrimination against women
in terms  of work or pay. They enjoyed rights of ownership under Iylamic  law,
had the same educational and employment opportunities 08 men, and were
entitled to paid maternity leave. Women in Oman were now employed in all
vocational and professional fields at all levela, meaning that their status as
an influential element in society had been fully acknowledged.

62. L&Q&QTUIVLIu  (Fiji) said that his delegation was grateful to the
Division for the Advancement of Women for conducting in Rarotonga a regional
seminar on the Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Discrimination
against Women. The technical nature of the seminar and advisory services
would assist  Fiji in enhancing the role of women in development.

63. In Fiji, equal opportunity for women in the upper echelons of government
had gained greater impetus with the establishment of the Ministry for.  Women.
There were currently two women ministers with cabinet rank and two women heads
of government departmentst  for tho first time, a woman had been appointed a
magistrate. Many others occupied senior positions in public service or
private enterprise, and were influential in all spheres of development,
inrluding  policy formulation, programme implementation and decision-making.

64. His Governmont placed great importance on en'nancing the quality of life
of women in rural areas, and several projects were under way to improve
houaing and the water supply and to provide access  to education and health
services. Workshops had also been organized to promote women's skills and
family planning and to ameliorate nutrition and hygiene. In all those
activities, Fiji was grateful to UNIFEM, UNDP and WHO, as wall ad  to all the
donox States, for their assistance.

65. Women in Fiji wore  relatively well-educated, had equal voting rights and
accounted for a significant proportion of the workforce. They were an
integral part of Fiji's development process.



&/C.3/46/SR.19
English
Page 14

66. Ma..-  ( K e n y a )  s a i d  t h a t  o n e  o f  t h e  most i n t r a c t a b l e  o b s t a c l e s
to the advancement of women wan  the persistence of social and cultural
practicea  and attitudes even when equality existed by law. Although campaigns
had been conducted to influence traditional sex bias, those efforts were far
f r o m  a c h i e v i n g  t h e  d e a i r e d  g o a l . Assistance to those involved in implementing
programmes to bring about change was therefore crucial if improvement was to
be made in the long term.

67. The debt burden and structural-adjustment programmes of the 1980s had
impeded the advancement of women in Kenya. Success in implementing the
Forward-looking Strategien  had been adversely affected by the existing
international economic order and by increasing urban poverty among women and
children. There was an urgent need for programmes tailored to young women
that focused on adolescent fertility and single mothers.

68. Following the 1985 World Conference on Women held in Nairobi, a two..yedr
operational-research project had been launched by the Kenyan Women’s Bureau
and Public Law Institute on abuse and violence against women, with a view to
creating multidisciplinary servicea  for the victims and mapping nut a
long-term strategy. Owing in part to the victims’ reluctance to come forward,
the project hsd met with considerable difficulties, Women must be encouraged
to speak out on the issue, which was not confined to one country or cultural
rys tern. Action by Member States at the national level must be encouraged.
Education to promote respect for every individual, starting from childhood,
must be furthered. Her delegation wa- pleased to note that the Committee on
the Elimination of Discrimination against Women (CEDAW)  would be discussing
the issue under article 6 of the Convention.

6 9 . The growing impoverishment of women must not be allowed to continue.
Young women must be vigorously encouraged to pursue educational
opportunities. Women needed skills for participating in the informal sector
on an equal footing with menr and must not be prevented from working in
male-dominated occupations for lack of financial assistance or credit.

70. Her delegation supported the work of UNIFEM, which must show greater
flexibility in meeting the demands of poor urban and rural women. The roles
and needs of women changed with the times, and UNIFEM’s  mandate must be
amended accordingly.

71. The Secretary-General’s report on the improvement of the status of women
in the Secretariat (A/46/377) showed that unless Governments stepped up their
e f f o r t s  a t  t h e  n a t i o n a l  l e v e l , it would be difficult to meet the 35-per-cent
target  se t  for  1995. Governments, especially African Governments, must be
asked to do more in that respect.

72. With regard to the venue of the 1995 World Conference on Women, her
delegation supported the position of the Group of 77.

/ . . .



A/C.3/4ti/SR.19
English
Page 15

73" &..~~~~~MI  -M~E~~JSM  (Director, Division for the Advancement of Women) said
that the debate had been stimulating and had shown her that the Division wa6
on the right track and was responding to the programmes of both Ueveloping  and
developed countries in achiovinq the advancement envisaqed by the Nairobi
Forward-looking Strategies. The priority themes - such as poverty; women as
heads of households; the impact of the economic crisis, debt and structural
readjustment on women in the third world; violencet  participation in
decision-making1  women as refugees and displaced persons and women living in
centres of conflict; and elderly women - were now being dealt with in projects
undertaken by United Nations aqcncies, largely on the basic of recommendationn
from expert grollps, seminars and the Commission on the Status of Women.

74. Thoee projects were the result of prospects opened during debates in the
Third Committee, for which she was extremely grateful. The continuing
dialoque  between Member States and the Division yuaranteed  success - the
realization of equality between men and women - perhaps by the year 2000.
There had, of course, been frustration over lack of resources, hut she was
confidant  that, through the dotermination of the members of the Committee, the
competent organs of the Gonoral  Assembly would respond to appeals.

15. Many representatives had expressed the hope that the high-level
interregional consultation on women in public life could be reinstated. She
assured them that as soon as the necessar- v' voluntary contributions had been
received, including contributions to finance the participation of the least
developed countries, a date would be fixed in consultation with the Commibsion
on the Status of Women, which would welcome suggestions.

76. In response to questions, she said that the Division hoped to take part
in the 1994 International Conference on Population and DeveIopment  and the
1993 World Conference on Hum,an Rights. It would certainly take  part in the
Global Assembly of Women and the Environment to take place at Miami in
November 1991 and had already prepared two papers. As to the next session of
CEDAW, she looked forward to hearing as soon as possible from the countries
that would be submitting reports, namely, Barbados, China, Czechoslovakia,
El Salvador, Ghana, Honduras, Spain, Sri Lanka and Venezuela. That aeasion
would be followed by a meeting of Ft.ates  parties, at which those parties whose
membership in the Committee ended in 1992 would be invited to submit new
nominations.

77. Miss SHIELDS (Director, International Research and Training Institute for
the Advancement of Women (INSTRAW)) thanked the members of the Committee for
their thouqhtful and constructive approach to the reports before them.
Despite impatience at the slow pace in the advancement of womeil, and despite
the fact. that it was more t.haIl  16 years since the first United Nations
Conference on Women and 10 years since the coming  into force of the
Convention, the InLtitute's  efforts were still very necessary. No one was
more conscious of t.he  rl[~e?d  for action in the area of development for women -
and by women - than  tbr pcol)lc?  working on their behalf in the United Nations.
The problems were  not, (sll:;y  to solve, but with real commitment, adequate

/ . . .



MC.31461SR.19
English
Page 16

resource8 and political will, she was confident that progress could and would
be made. She appreciated the confidence shown in the Institute and believed
that the only meaningful response was to endeavour to turn words of hope into
action.

78. us. Ci!&&JJG-&A&U  (Director, United Nations Development Fund for
Women (UNIFEM)) said that the 1990s would be the most demanding decade that
the developing world had ever faced. Centres of economic power were shiftCng,
and rapid technological advances and emerging concepts of global governance
were opening up new frontiers. But if human development was to take its
rightful place in the centre  of all development efforts, new forms of
leadership were required, and an environment must be created in which it was
nt last acknowledged that 8ome  leaders were, indeed, born women.

79. As the debate on the item had shown, there was a growing understanding
that sustainable development could be achieved only if every source of human
potential was utilized and if men and women learned to live in harmony with
one other and with the ecosystem.

80. It was gratifying to hear delegations speak in support of the United
Nations collaborative effort that had produced the publication The World a,

1970-19Qp Words advocating the interests of women, however persuasive,
neaded  the pow@;  of numbers in order to influence policy. UNIFEM appreciated
that support and looked forward to guidance from delegations with respect to
making the update of that publication a regular responsibility of the United

,Nations. m World s Woman provided compelling arguments for increaTed social
monitoring to reveal the terrible inequalities hidden behind the averages for
per capita GNP.

01. Collaborative efforts within the United Nations system throughout the
1970s and 1980s had also produced a significant record of achievement as part
of the international endeavour to integrate women in mainstream development.
Strides had been made in generating resources and raising awareness. Most
countries and development institutions had had women-in-development units that
had assembled data to provide the conceptual basis fqr designing programmes
incorporating the women’s dimension. Equality, peace and development were
intrinsically linked to the international movement for women in development.
Now that institutional structures had been established, the time had come to
focus on the strategic application of efforts in specific contexts and
locations.

82. In closing, she urged financial support for the Division for the
Advancement of Women at a time when preparations were beginning for the 1995
World Conference on Wonlen. That year would be an important referenca  point
for bringing tho women's dimension into globai issues, because it marked the
fiftieth anniversary of the United Nations ah::! the tonth anniversary of the
:lJoption,  by global consensus, of the Nairobi Forward-looking Strategies. It
was to be hoped that women in the United Nations Secretariat would be able to

/ . . .



A/C.3/46/SR.19
English
Page 1.7

(Mrs. Caoelincr-Alakiia)

celebrate the achievement of targets set by the General Assembly and that the
Conference would provide concrete solutions to the development problems faced
by the millions of women who lived in poverty.

8 3 . Ms. HABACHY  (Focal Point for Women, Office of the Assistant
Secretary-General for Human Resources Management) expressed appreciation on
behalf of her colleagues to delegations that had spoken OR the issue of the
improvement of the status of women in the Secretariat. She had taken due note
of the useful suggestions made and would relay them to her colleagues in the
Office of Human Resources Management and to the Steering Committee for the
Improvement of the Status of Women in the Secretariat. Delegations must
continue their eadeavours to set targets, provide women candidates and give
support and advice.

84. Mr. AL1  (Iraq), speaking in exercise of the right of reply, said that
Iraq had handed over lists with the names of detained Kuwaitis  to the
International Committee of the Red Cross. Kuwait had not undertaken the
required procedures to ensure their return, on the pretext that it could not
distinguish between Kuwaitis  and non-Kuwaitis on the list. Iraq had shown a
willingness to hand over the persons concerned whenever Kuwait wished to
receive them. Many Kuwaitis  were waiting to return until living conditions in
Kuwait had improved. Iraq was not responsible for Kuwaitis  loitering around
in first-class hotels in Europe, the United States and elsewhere. Kuwait was
simply attempting to mobilize public opinion against Iraq so that the embargo
would be prolonged.

85. m& (Kuwait) said that Kuwait had handed over to the
International Committee of the Red Cross lists of 2,101 Kuwaitis  and
non-Kuwaitis, including 214 women and 53 children under the age of 12, who
were being held in Iraq. The lists had also contained names of non-Kuwaitis
because they too had been removed from Kuwait during the occupation. She
called upon Iraq to allow the International Committee of the Red Cross to have
immediate access to those prisoners.

The  meetina rose at 6.10  v.m.


